h orrest M . B gd Chdrter chools

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

Team: FBCS Board of Directors Chairperson: | Kate McAlister
Meeting Date: | Sept. 21, 2021 Start Time: 4:00 PM

Minutes: BOD Secretary — Jim Zuberbuhler Location: FBCS High School
Address: 815 S. Madison Ave, Sandpoint, iD 83864

Virtual Meeting Link:
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone,
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/388610573

Cali to Order @ 4:00 PM: BOD Chairperson — Kate McAlister

ITEM

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of minutes

Public Comment

Financials
e Action Item: Approval Financial Reports
e Discussion: CARES Funding

Open Business
e Action ltem: 2020-21 Audit

Kate McAlister

Kate McAlister

Kate McAlister

Greta Warren
Greta Warren/ Mary Jensen

Kevin Smith

e Action ltem: Continuous Plan of improvement Mary J. Jensen

e Action item: Bussing Contract Jennifer Greve

s Action Item: Special Education Manual Mary J. Jensen
Idaho Special Education Manual 2018

o Action ltem: Teacher Exploring Canadian Field Trip Options Mary J. Jensen

Adjourn @ :00 PM: BOD Chairperson

Next Meeting Date and Time: October 19, 2021

Kate McAlister







Board Special Meeting
Forrest M. Bird Charter High School
615 S. Madison,
Sandpoint, ID 83864
Date: Aug 17, 2021

Board Meeting Minutes

Jennifer Greve

Stacey Mueller, Kate McAlister, Jacob lverson

Jim Zuberbuhler

Jennifer Greve, Mary Jensen, Greta Warren

Meeting called to order at 4:06 pm Kate McAlister

Pledge of Allegiance

Meeting Minutes Kate McAlister
Action Item: Approval of Meeting Minutes for June 22, 2021

v Motioned - Jacob

v 2™ .. Stacey
Approved Unanimously

Action item: Approval Financial Reports Greta Warren
Greta Warren stated these financials were only for July since we are at the start of the fiscal year. Audit
results will be discussed next meeting.

v Motioned — Jacob
v 2". Stacey
Unanimously Approved

Action item: CARES Funding Mary Jensen/Greta Warren
Mary reviewed the use of CARES (ESSR | and II). Funding for a counselor to help staff once a month
for staff mental health. Kim Miinarik will host these sessions. The math department also sent testing
curriculum for review to help determine student progress due to COVID.

Approval of the math curriculum testing materials and counselor

v" Motioned - Jacob

v 2™. Stacey

Unanimously Approved




Action item: School Psychologist Contract Mary Jensen
This psychologist comes from an online service program. Mary Jensen reviewed reasons behind the
move to online services versus in house. Specifically, the difficulty in finding a school psychologist. The
person found through this online program is up to date on all current SPED laws, has ID certification,
and has methods for providing services via the online method. Board member Stacey Mueller asked if
there were any concerns regarding this service coming to us in the online method. Mary Jensen
reviewed the information received from the company for this method and the responses from the school
psychologist which alleviated these concerns. Jacob lverson noted his appreciation that it is a one year
contract which allows FBCS to try this option, stay legal, and then determine if it will work or not. Mary
Jensen then shared all the other avenues looked into for bringing someone in house without success.
Approval of School Psychologist for 2021-22 school year

v Motioned - Stacey

v 2. Jacob
Unanimously Approved

Information: SPED Significant Disproportionality Kenda Russell/Jennifer Greve

Information: 2021 Spring Standardized Test Scores Mary Jensen
Mary Jensen reviewed the test scores in relation to the state and nation: most schools took a downturn
due to COVID. Mary Jensen then reviewed FBCS math scores specifically, addressing how there were
no scores for anyone from last year. She reminded board members that 6" grade students were new to
FBCS and were, like all students, were behind due to COVID. She pointed out that as students move
along in grades we see gaps closing and that students who stay with FBCS are retaining the
information. Mary shared that the math and English departments will be working on, upon return,
specific department goals to help with ISAT scores. FBCS will attempt to hire two para pro to help with
middle school math and language arts. Moved to reviewing the ELA scores. FBCS tends to perform
well in the ELA tests. Mary walked through the grade by grade growth of students. There is a
stagnation at 8" and then a strong jump in 10" grade.

These scores and information will go in the FBCS Continuous Plan of Improvement.

Action Item: Science Club Mary Jensen
FBCS received a donation of a very nice donation of a large, high end telescope as well as a smaller
version. Teachers Becky Campbell and Michael! Bigley have been taking courses over the summer
regarding telescope. Becky Campbell would like to have a science club where students would work with
the telescopes and possibly to receive HS elective credit. Becky is also creating fundraising activities
which involve the telescopes and the Science Club. The family who donated the first two telescopes are
donating a second large telescope.
Approval of Science Club

¥ Motioned — Stacey

v 2. Jacob
| Unanimously Approved

| Action ltem: Continuous Plan of Improvement Mary Jensen
This item was tabled because FBCS is waiting on appropriate data for plan creation.

| Action ltem: 2021-22 COVID Plan Mary Jensen
| Mary Jensen walked through the COVID plan for the 2021-22 school year noting that currently not much
| is different from the plan status last spring. While masks are at this point optional, with the county is in

| yellow the board must decide to keep it as optional. Mary shared LPOSD’s plan as well as NIC: they will
| be keeping masks optional. Four-year universities will have mandatory masks unless the ldaho SBE
otes otherwise.

| Kate McAlister noted she is ok with highly recommended optional since that is the trend in the area.

acob Iverson discussed changes in decisions through the last school year due to changes in the
science. He feels that how FBCS ended last year was on a very positive note. He did note that we will
earn much between opening and October which may change FBCS’ and the county’s direction. Stacey
Mueller shared her recollection of the change in student/teacher mental health when masks became
option. She prefers this for the overall school community.




Approval of COVID plan with highly recommended but optional mask wearing
v Motioned —~ Jacob
v 2" . Stacey

Unanimously Approved

Information: Board member emails on the school website Mary Jensen
Mary shared that board member emails are now on the school website for communication, community
relations and information.

Meeting adjourned at 4:44 pm Kate McAlister
v MNlotion to adjourn — Stacey
v 2™ - Jacob

Unanimously Approved

Sept 21, 2021 4:00 pm

Respectfully Submitted: Jennifer Greve






;93375’2": Forrest M Bird Charter School
Check Detail
August 2021
Type Date Num Name City State Memo Class Amount

Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 8552 AFLAC Columbus GA -1,095.46
Bill 07/12/2021 supplemental insurance 100 - General Fund 1,095.46
TOTAL 1,095.46
Bl Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9553  Avista Utilities Commercial Spokane WA -1,523.26
Bill 07/20/2021 utilities 100 - General Fund 486.52
Bill 07/20/2021 utifities 100 - General Fund 1,036.74
TOTAL 1,523.26
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9554 GreatAmerica Financial Svcs. Dallas TX 0.00
TOTAL 0.00
Bilt Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9555 LifeMap Assurance Company Portland OR -398.47
Bill 08/01/2021 life insurance 100 - General Fund 104.25
vision insurance 100 - General Fund 294.22
TOTAL 398.47
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9556 New York Life Dallas T -976.50
Bill 07/09/2021 supplemental life insurance 100 - General Fund 976.50
TOTAL 976.50
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9557 Primepay, LLC West Chester PA -75.44
Bill 07130/2021 COBRA services 100 - General Fund 75.44
TOTAL 75.44
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9558 Regence Blue Shield of Idaho Portland OR -28,571.40
Bill 08/01/2021 health insurance 100 - General Fund 5,616.00
health insurance 100 - General Fund 702.00
health insurance 100 - General Fund 14,040.00
heatlth insurance 100 - General Fund 1,404.00
health insurance 100 - General Fund 1,404.00
heaith insurance 100 - General Fund 702.00
heslth insurance 100 - General Fund 4,703.40
TOTAL 28,571.40
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9559 Royal Business Systems, Inc (Spokane} Spokane WA -20.00
Bill 07/22/2021 copy maching overage 100 - General Fund 20.00
TOTAL 20.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9560 State Insurance Fund Boise 1D -3,596.00
Bilt 07/01/2021 workers comp insurance 100 - General Fund 3,5696.00
TOTAL 3,5986.00

Page 1 of 7



1:23 PM

Forrest M Bird Charter School

09/07/21 .
Check Detail
August 2021
Type Date Num Name City State Memo Class Amount

Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9561 Verizon Wireless Dallas TX -439.29
Bill 07/15/2021 Administration cell phones 245 - Technology 309.53
SPED cell phones 257 - IDEA Part B 129.76
TOTAL 439.29
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9562 Ziply Fiber (052410-5) Cincinnati OH -141.54
Bilt 07/19/2021 phone services 245 - Technology 141.54
TOTAL 141.54
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/02/2021 9563 GreatAmerica Financial Sves. Dallas TX -202.11
Bill 07/05/2021 copy machine lease 100 - General Fund 202.11
TOTAL 202.11
Check 08/10/2021 eft Mountain West Bank -16,281.39
loan payment 100 - General Fund 8,103.03
loan payment 100 - General Fund 8,178.36
TOTAL 16,281.39
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9564 Anderson, Jutian and Hull Boise D -66.00
Bill 0711412021 prepare contractor agreement 100 - General Fund 66.00
TOTAL 66.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9565 Bonner County Daily Bee Coeur d'Alene ID -24.63
Bill 07/31/2021 Bussing Bids 100 - General Fund 24,63
TOTAL 24.63
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9566 City of Sandpoint Sandpoint i} -2,319.63
Bill 08/01/2021 city water 100 - General Fund 257.77
city water 100 - General Fund 952.30
city water 100 - General Fund 1,109.56
TOTAL 2,319.63
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9567 Clearwater Springs Hayden D -23.22
Bill 07/31/2021 cooler rental 100 - General Fund 23.22
TOTAL 23.22
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9568 Delta Dental Seattle WA 0.00
TOTAL 0.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9569 Fatbeam LLC Coeur d’Alene 1D -507.00
Bill 08/01/2021 internet services 245 - Technology 507.00
TOTAL 507.00

Page20of 7



;9?37';'2“: Forrest M Bird Charter School
Check Detail
August 2021
Type bate Num Name City State Memo Class Amount

Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9570 First Bankcard - 4019 Omaha NE ~111.99
Bill 07/26/2021 credit card payment 100 - General Fund 111.99
TOTAL 111.99
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9571 First Bankcard - 6342 Omaha NE ~132.30
Bill 07/26/2021 credit card payment 100 - General Fund 132.30
TOTAL 132.30
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9572  First Bankcard - 9728 Omaha NE -79.50
Bill 07/26/2021 credit card payment 100 - General Fund 79.50
TOTAL 79.50
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9573 Idaho Department of Education Boise iD -122.00
Bill 06/30/2021 Transportation Assessment Fe 100 - General Fund 122.00
TOTAL 122.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9574 Leaf Hartford CcT -149.11
Bill 07/28/2021 copy machine lease 100 - General Fund 148.11
TOTAL 149.11
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9575 Reliable Services Ponderay D -825.00
Bilt 08/10/2021 electrical work 100 - General Fund 810.00
electrical work 100 - General Fund 15.00
TOTAL 825.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9576 Sand Creek Custom Wear Sandpoint D -1,344.00
Bilt 08/08/2021 heat transfers for school shirts 100 - General Fund 1,344.00
TOTAL 1,344.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9577 Staples Business Credit Atlanta GA -84.36
Bilt 07/25/2021 office/teaching supplies 100 - General Fund 84.36
TOTAL 84.36
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 8578 Tandy Therapy LLC Post Falls D +59.36
Bilt 08/05/2021 Occupational Therapy 257 - IDEA PartB 59.36
TOTAL 59.36
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9579 Traci L. Feek NCSP, LPC Hayden iD -1,390.50
Bill 08/11/2021 school psych monthly services 100 - General Fund 1,390.50
TOTAL 1,390.50
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9580 Waste Management of Idaho Los Angeles CA -1,133.25

Page 3 of 7



;;737‘1’_":’1' Forrest M Bird Charter School
Check Detail
August 2021
Type Date Num Name City State Memo Class Amount
Bill 08/01/2021 garbage services 100 - General Fund 1,133.25
TOTAL 1,133.25
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9581 Wayne Johnson Laclede D 0.00
TOTAL 0.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9582  Ziply Fiber (122903-5) Cincinnati OH -160.64
Bill 07/25/2021 phone services 245 - Technology 160.64
TOTAL 160.64
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9583 Delta Dental Seattle WA -1,846.01
Bill 08/01/2021 dental insurance 100 - General Fund 1,879.80
TOTAL 1,879.80
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/16/2021 9584 GreatAmerica Financial Svcs. Dalias TX -228.11
Bill 08/03/2021 copy machine lease 100 - General Fund 228.11
TOTAL 228.11
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Raymond Smith Priest River D 100 - General Fund -438.94
Paycheck 0812012021 eft Greta M Warren Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -2,608.34
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Jennifer Greve Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -3,422.27
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Mary Jensen Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -3,702.38
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Amy O'Hara Sandpoint iD 100 - General Fund -879.07
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Aprill J Van Ausdal Sandpoint iD 100 - General Fund -3,058.55
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Becky Campbeli Sandpoint ID 100 - General Fund -2,464.78
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Bonnie Jakubos Sagle D 100 - General Fund -349.47
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Darryl Claunch Sandpoint ID 100 - General Fund -2,858.26
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft David Lien Sandpoint D 251 - Title I-A -2,836.85
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Eric Fulgenzi Sandpoint iD 100 - General Fund +2,270.28
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Hillary F. DeCecchis Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -2,142.87
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Holland Walker Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -2,924.07
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Holly Bronis Laclede D 100 - General Fund «2,379.24
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Janenne Russell Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -2,690.15
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Jay Myers Newport WA 100 - General Fund -2,799.00
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft John Stevens Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -2,404.65
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Kenda Russell Careywood iD 100 - General Fund -3,691.51
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Krysten Barrett Barre vT 100 - General Fund -2,832.38
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Laura Maas Sandpoint iD 100 - General Fund -2,787.18
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Lyndsay Holland Sandpoint iD 100 - General Fund -2,508.31
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Mark Webber Sandpoint iD 100 - General Fund -2,643.81
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Michael E Bigley Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund <2,612.96
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Misty Rains Sandpoint ID 100 - General Fund -3,015.43
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Mitzi Vesecky Sagle D 100 - General Fund 0.00
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Raymond Smith Priest River ID 100 - General Fund -2,392.83
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Sarah Evans Sandpoint 1D 100 - General Fund -2,176.95
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Shainnie Wade Careywood D 100 - General Fund -2,030.70
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Victoria Vesecky Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -2,519.90
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Wendy Thompson Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -3,123.43
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft William Benage Bonners Ferry 1D 100 - General Fund -937.19

Page 4 of 7



;9737’,’2“: Forrest M Bird Charter School
Check Detail
August 2021
Type Date Num Name City State Memo Class Amount

Paycheck 0812012021 eft William Krutz Sandpoint iD 100 - General Fund -3,069.32
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Christopher Hughes Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund ~1,821.62
Paycheck 08/20/2021 eft Skyler Kent Sandpoint D 100 - General Fund -395.39
Liability Checl 08/25/2021 eftps  United States Treasury -25,690.12
payroli faxes 8,337.00
payroll taxes 7,032.01
payroll taxes 7,032.01
payroli taxes 1,644.55
payroll taxes 1,644.55
TOTAL 25,680.12
Liability Checl 08/25/2021 eft Idaho State Tax Commission -3,168.00
payroli taxes 3,168.00
TOTAL 3,168.00
Check 08/25/2021 eft PERSI Boise D -4,006.36
retirement payment 100 - General Fund 4,008.36
TOTAL 4,006.36
Check 08/25/2021 eft PERSH Boise D -23,115.75
retirement payment 100 - General Fund 424.93
refirement payment 100 - General Fund 283.80
retirement payment 100 - General Fund 87.33
retirement payment 100 - General Fund 2,798.51
retirement payment 100 - General Fund 9,409.22
retirement payment 100 - General Fund 1,004.96
retirement payment 100 - General Fund 8,665.37
retirement payment 251 - Title I-A 441.53
TOTAL 23,115.76
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9585 AFLAC Columbus GA -1,095.46
Bill 08/12/2021 supplemental insurance 100 - General Fund 1,085.46
TOTAL 1,095.46
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9586  Avista Utilities Commercial Spokane WA -1,332.93
Bill 08/18/2021 utilities 100 - General Fund 838.49
Bill 08/19/2021 utilities 100 - General Fund 484,44
TOTAL 1,332.93
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9587 Delta Dental Seattle WA ~1,697.00
Bilt 08/01/2021 dental insurance 100 - General Fund 1,687.00
TOTAL 1,697.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9588 Floor Show Inc. Ponderay iD -949.85

Page 5 of 7



1:23 PM Forrest M Bird Charter School
09/07/21 N
Check Detail
August 2021
Type Date Num Name City State Memo Class Amount
Bill 08/10/2021 HS entryway carpet 100 - General Fund 762.85
HS entryway carpet 100 - General Fund 187.00
TOTAL 949.85
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9589 [daho Digital Learning Boise D -45.00
Bill 08/04/2021 online summer classes 100 - General Fund 45.00
TOTAL 45,00
Biil Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9590 LifeMap Assurance Company Portland OR -358.02
Bill 09/01/2021 life insurance 100 - General Fund 98.25
vision insurance 100 - General Fund 259.77
TOTAL 358.02
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9591 New York Life Dallas TX -976.50
Bill 08/11/2021 supplemental life insurance 100 - General Fund 976.50
TOTAL 976.50
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9592 Regence Blue Shield of Idaho Portland OR -26,465.40
Bill 09/01/2021 health insurance 100 - General Fund 5,616.00
health insurance 100 - General Fund 702.00
health insurance 100 - General Fund 10,530.00
health insurance 257 - IDEA Part B 702.00
health insurance 100 - General Fund 2,108.00
health insurance 251 - Title I-A 702.00
health insurance 254 - CRRSA ESSER 1,404.00
health insurance 100 - General Fund 4,703.40
TOTAL 26,465.40
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9593 Royal Business Systems, Inc (Spokane) Spokane WA -31.50
Bill 08/20/2021 copy maching overage 100 - General Fund 22.00
Bill 08/20/2021 toner shipping 100 - General Fund 9.50
TOTAL 31.50
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 8594  Sears Fire Extinguisher Services Spokane Valley WA -225.00
Bill 08/24/2021 fire extinguisher maintenance 100 - General Fund 225.00
TOTAL 225.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9585 State Insurance Fund Boise D -1,348.00
Bill 08/16/2021 workers comp insurance 100 - General Fund 1,348.00
TOTAL 1,348.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9596 Verizon Wireless Dallas ™ -442.98
Bill 08/15/2021 Administration cell phones 245 - Technology 313.22
SPED cell phones 257 - IDEA Part B 129.76
TOTAL 442.98

Page 6 of 7



1:23 PM Forrest M Bird Charter School
09/07/21

Check Detail
August 2021
Type Date Num Name City = State Memo Class Amount

Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9587 Wayne Johnson Laclede [in] -3,000.00
Bill 08/02/2021 Driver's Education 241 - Drivers Ed 3,000.00
TOTAL ; 3,000.00
Bill Pmt -Chec 08/30/2021 9598  Ziply Fiber (052410-5) Cincinnati OH -141.54
Bili 08/19/2021 phone services 245 - Technology 141.54
TOTAL 141.54
Check 08/31/2021 100 - General Fund -12.00
Service Charge 100 - General Fund 12.00

TOTAL 12.00

Page 7 of 7



Lo | abey

88°020'y

oo'el
Lo'6te
00059
S0°681
66'L1
88'LLE
S6'vL
0061
00'04¥'2

safjddng “Liwpy [00Y2S - OL~L b9
saliddng "uiwpy j0oYds - OLy-L b9
dyosgng g SeNQ "UIWPY J00YDS - 06E-L Y9
sej|ddng “uIWPY 00YDS - OLi~Lbe
nuay wewdinb3 “uIWpY [00YoS - Z28-Ly9
duosgng 3 senQ "UiWIPY {004dS - 0BE-LY9
duosqng g seng] "UUIPY [00UdS - 06E-LY9
duosqng B 8N "UWIPY jO0UdS - 06E-L 19
duosqng g senqQ "UILIPY [004OS - 06E-L¥9

Al - yueg 1o UIN
21949 - jueg 1S8M UIN
elals) - jueg 1Sapn Ui
Bj8I9 - jued 1M UIN

liig - jueg 1seMm Ui
g - ueg issp WIN
Hig - jueg 1S9 UIN
g - Yueg }sapm Wi
g - ueg i1sep UIN

ueA |0oLos ysem
seljddns Asjewoab

uonduosgns jjosed syoogyony

sensibal 10§ se)und 8)isHo

89} abejsad Ayjuow

{99UM JOJUOW 3JOMIOU BSUaDY jenuue
{emaual ujewop s}Isqem

unogieid Bugssw fenyia

Jeah | - 8suasy Jejjl} Juejuoo Aejaypasdsiybiy

al

Bl

julodpueg

obBeayn

1z By
Usep JeD "aAY YIS LZ20Z/6L/80  8Bieys pieg upssd

woo'uozewy 120g/g/80  ebieyd pied ypaid
umup 1Z02/0L/80  8bieyd pieD jipeid
woo'uozewy LZ0z/Li/80  abieyp pieg ipain
wodsdwels 120z/Li/g0  abieyd pied jpaid
Jojsseed L20Z/60/80  ©BieyD preD upeid
wod uewopAW 1202/60/80  9bseyD pied Wpaid
Bupesiy 0109 1202/50/80  8BiByD pieD JpaID
MQO 1202/€0/80  8Bieyd pied ypaiD

1z Bny

Hpaig

Hds

JUNOOY

owap

1202 snbny
Joday jfejaq pied Hpald
jooyog Jsyieyg piig I 3s94104

aels

Ao

aweN ajeq adA)

s|segq [eniooy
12/L0/60
Wd 8L}



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

Sandpoint, Idaho

Audited Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

Sandpoint, Idaho
TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE

Independent AUILOr'S REPOIT .........coomivvieiiiiirei et cteecsiree b e ibr e s sbr e s sbas sesnansressorarsensans 1-2

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards .................ccooeovevevevvneneinnnn. 3-4

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statements of Financial POSItion ........ccccccvevveeieeecvcenieenieeee reereterereresaea e e e e araarer e e esreranan 5
Statements Of ACHIVITIES c..ovcciierrerirc ettt ess e s e ese e sse s e e sne e s e s e e e saaesananans 6-7
Statements Of Cash FIOWS ...coocireriiiiciiinieniccee st esee st ne st et s s e st e seeesba s saseens nee 8
Statements of Functional Expense.............. PPN 9-10
Notes to the Financial StatemeNnts .......ceviicineeniiiie e es e e 11-17

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -

Independent Auditor’s Rep’o“rt‘ oﬁk‘Sube’éﬁiénfafy Information.........coccevvveevenrcnecccecncerncenees 18
Schedule | - Statement of’ Net quitfbn ................................................................................. 19
Schedule li - Statement of ActiVities ..................................................................................... 20
Schedule I = Balance SHEET......c.cvviiiiniiiicrceree st eseesresstes e esbeesae s aessbesenesen 21
Schedule IV — Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances
to Net Position of Governmental ACtIVIEIES .......coceriireerieienineiienenee et eeesee e 22
Schedule V — Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes iN FUNG BaIANCE.....cccvii it cectreesieereeseeressreseae s st sesesesssseesasesesanessssensuanenn 23

Schedule VI — Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement
OF ACTIVITIES «evveertieieieee et ceattr e eveereree s s e se et essessssbbnnneaseesessnssberssessesseses annrneesnes 24




PAGE
GENERAL FUND

Schedule VIl - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance — Budget and ACTUAL.......covceeieieciriceer et 25

Schedule Vil - Statement of Expenditures by Function —
BUAZET @N ACTUB ..ttt e r e enrn s 26

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Schedule IX —~ Combining Balance SHE@t.......c..oceiveieeeeeeeeeeeee e eee e e e e e e e 27-28

Schedule X — Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
FUND BAIANCE ...ttt et et st eeen et nes e e e e eans 29-30

PLANT FACILITY FUND

Schedule X1 - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance.....c.ccceevieenniccnninieviesescee e et 31




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

Sandpoint, Idaho

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Federal receivable
State support receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Property and equipment:
Land
Buildings and land improvements
Fixtures and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net property and equipment

Other assets:
Cash with donor restrictions
Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries and benefits payable
Accrued interest o
Deferred revenue S
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs
Net long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2021 2020
1,455,879 1,228,834
22,779 97,700
47,662 144,610
- 13,010
22,546 29,564
1,548,866 1,513,718
14,227 14,227
4,985,946 4,947,431
148,322 138,322
{1,792,702) {1,649,499)
3,355,793 3,450,481
52,343 63,163
52,343 63,163

S 4,957,002

$ 5,027,362

18,378 6,667
303,544 295,370
5,656 5,561

- 1,350

93,854 90,180
421,432 399,128
2,499,675 2,593,982
{18,333) (20,389)
2,481,342 2,573,593
2,902,774 2,972,721
1,934,127 1,934,960
120,101 119,681
2,054,228 2,054,641

S 4,957,002

S 5,027,362

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, Idaho

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Without With
Donor Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUE, GRANTS, AND OTHER SUPPORT

Federal support - 434,016 434,016

State support 2,507,265 88,431 2,595,696

Local support 21,473 5,806 27,279

Interest 1,508 - 1,508
Total revenue, grants, and other support 2,530,246 528,253 3,058,499
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS =

Restrictions satisfied by payments .527,833 (527,833) -
Total net assets released from restrictions . 527,833 {527,833} -
EXPENSE

Program (instructional) 1,814,195 - 1,814,195

Administrative (support) 991,105 - 991,105

Non-instructional 3,515 - 3,515

Debt-service interest 106,894 - 106,894

Depreciation 143,203 - 143,203
Total expense 3,058,912 - 3,058,912
Change in net assets (833) 420 (413)
Net assets - beginning of year 1,934,960 119,681 2,054,641
Net assets - end of year $ 1,934,127 120,101 2,054,228

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, Idaho

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Without With
Donor Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUE, GRANTS, AND OTHER SUPPORT

Federal support - 213,308 213,308

State support 2,703,362 98,606 2,801,968

Local support 11,256 314,323 325,579

interest 1,992 - 1,992
Total revenue, grants, and other support 2,716,610 626,237 3,342,847
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Restrictions satisfied by payments 616,497 {616,497) -
Total net assets released from restrictions 616,497 - {616,497) -
EXPENSE

Program {instructional) 1,793,186 - 1,793,186

Administrative (support) . 1,001,269 - 1,001,269

Capital asset program : 20,697 - 20,697

Debt-service interest 116,642 - 116,642

Depreciation 140,638 - 140,638
Total Expense o : 3,072,432 - 3,072,432
Change in net assets ‘ ) 260,675 9,740 270,415
Net assets - beginning of year; as restated {see Note-12) 1,674,285 109,941 1,784,226
Net assets - end of year , S 1,934,960 § 119,681 $ 2,054,641

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, Idaho

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from state support 2,692,644 2,771,324
Cash received from federal support 508,937 137,549
Cash received from interest 1,508 1,992
Other cash received 38,939 41,596
Cash paid for interest {104,743) {115,259)
Cash paid to suppliers and employees {2,781,912) {2,843,261)
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities 355,373 {59)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid for property and equipment (48,515) -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term debt - 2,694,583
Payment on long-term debt (90,633) (2,765,480)
Debt issuance costs - {20,560)
Net cash used in financing activities (90,633) (91,457)
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 216,225 (91,516)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 1,291,997 1,383,513
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 1,508,222 § 1,291,997
Reconciliation of change in net assets to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Change in net assets G (413) 270,415
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by {used in) operating activities:
Amortization of unamortized debt issuance costs reported as interest expense 2,056 171
Depreciation . 143,203 140,638
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Federal support receivable 74,921 {75,759)
State support receivable 96,948 (24,644)
Other receivable 13,010 (13,010)
Prepaid expenses 7,018 (26,351}
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accrued interest 95 1,212
Accounts payable 11,711 {(7,244)
Deferred revenue (1,350) (260,779)
Salaries and benefits payable 8,174 {4,708)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 355373 § (59}
Cash and cash equivalents reconciliation
Cash and cash equivalents without donor restrictions 1,455,879 1,228,834
Cash and cash equivalents with donor restrictions 52,343 63,163
S 1,508,222 S 1,291,997
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 8



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, idaho

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Administrative
{Instructional) {Support) Other Total
Salaries 1,267,913 408,690 - 1,677,603
Benefits 462,195 150,989 - 613,184
Purchased services 51,476 285,357 2,946 339,779
Supplies-materials 32,611 145,069 569 178,249
Debt service interest - - 106,894 106,894
Depreciation - - 143,203 143,203
Total expense S 1,814,195 S 991,105 S 253,612 S 3,058,912

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, Idaho

Salaries

Benefits

Purchased services
Supplies-materials
Debt service interest
Depreciation

Total expense

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Program Administrative

(Instructional) (Support) Other Total
1,146,293 473,594 - 1,619,887
407,288 154,771 - 562,059
158,889 319,757 - 478,646
80,716 53,147 20,697 154,560
- - 116,642 116,642
- - 140,638 140,638
S 1,793,186 S 1,001,269 277,977 S 3,072,432

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

10



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, Idaho

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1 Organization

The Forrest M. Bird Charter Schools, Inc. (the School) is a non-profit state-funded public School.
The School serves 6% through 12t grade. The School was approved in January 2001 by the Lake
Pend Oreille School District Board of Trustees. The expansion to a high school was
approved by the Lake Pend Oreille School District Board of Trustees in August of 2008.

NOTE 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting - The School uses the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Cash - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include money market
mutual funds, time deposits, certificates of deposit, and all highly liquid debt instruments with
original maturities of three months or less. The School has no requirement to hold cash in
separate accounts. s

Accounts Receivable - No allowance for uncollectible accounts is calculated by the School since
all receivables were deemed to be collectible.

Income Tax Status - The School is f'éfk,empt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code'eXCép‘t for-incdme, if any, derived from unrelated business. The School’s
Forms 990, Return of Organizatibn’fxempt from Income Tax, for the years ending 2019, 2020,
and 2021 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after they were filed.

Property and Equipment - The cost of property and equipment is depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Major expenditures costing at least $5,000 which
substantially increase useful lives are capitalized. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are
expensed as incurred. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method for financial
reporting purposes. The useful lives of property and equipment for purposes of computing
depreciation are 5 to 7 years for office furniture and equipment and 40 years for buildings.
Depreciation expense for the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $143,203 and $140,638,

respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs - The School capitalizes the cost of loan origination fees which are amortized over
the term of the loan. In accordance with ASU 2015-03 the amortization of debt issuance costs are
reported as interest expense. Amounts included in interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020 was $2,056 and $171 respectively.

11



NOTE 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of Estimates - The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the use of estimates and
assumptions regarding certain types of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and actual
results may differ from estimated amounts.

Net Assets - Net assets are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the School and changes therein are classified as
follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the School. The School’s board may designate assets without restrictions for specific
operational purposes from time to time.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors,
and grantor. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the Non-Profit Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

Statement of Cash Flows - For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the School considers
all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Reports Required by the State - Idaho D‘eparktment of Education requires the School to submit
financial information in accqrdance}with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for goi/ernmehtal entities. This information is included as supplemental
information to the basic financial statements. The General Fund accounts for activities for
general operations and the other funds presented are used to account for activities related to
restricted funds and grants the School received.

Subsequent Events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date of the auditor’s
report. This is the date the financial statement were available to be issued. The School has
concluded that no material subsequent events have occurred.

Revenue Recognition — The School has implemented ASU 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, and has applied the five-step process to their contract revenue. The School has
determined that it has no earnings from contract revenue that would be subject to the
requirements of ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

12



NOTE 3 Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt for the School as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 consists of the following:

2021 2020
Mountain West Bank {(MWB) loan, secured by real
property, payable at $16,281 per month including
1 0,
interest at 3.98%. The note matures May 2030. 2,593,529 2,684,162
Total Long Term Debt 2,593,529 2,684,162
Less Current Portion (93,854) (90,180)
Net Long-term Debt S 2,499,675 S 2,593,982
Future debt service is as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ended June 30,
2022 93,854
2023 97,658
2024 W 101,617
12025 ; 105,736
2026 110,022
Thereafte 2,084,642
' Total $ 2,593,529

NOTE 4 Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods:

2021 2020
Subject to expenditure for specified purpose
Donor specified contributions 1,589 4,037
Student funds 43,974 41,683
Special revenue funds 74,538 73,961

Total $ 120101 $ 119,681




NOTE 5 Liquidity and Availability of Resources

The Organization has $1,510,321 of financial assets available within one year of the statement
of financial position date to meet cash needs for general expenditures consisting of cash of
$1,462,659 and accounts receivable of $47,662. None of the financial assets are subject to
donor or other contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditures
within one year of the statement of financial position date. The accounts receivable are subject
to implied time restrictions but are expected to be collected within one year. As part of the
Organization’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be
available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.

NOTE 6 Major Funding Sources

The School received a majority of its revenue from the Idaho Department of Education and J.A.
Kathryn Albertson Foundation.

. 2021 % of Total Revenue

Idaho Department of Education $2,595,696 - 84.87%
2020 % of Total Revenue

Idaho Department of Education $2,801,968 83.82%

J.A. Kathryn Albertson Foundation $295,629 8.84%
NOTE 7 Employee’s Retirement System

Public Employee Retirement System of >l'fdaho (PERSI), The PERSI Base Plan, a cost sharing
multiple-employer public kretir,ement‘.system, was created by the Idaho State Legislature. It is a
defined benefit plan requiring that both the member and the employer contribute. The Plan
provides benefits based on mem,bers" years of service, age, and compensation. In addition,
benefits are provided for disability,‘ death, and survivors of eligible members or beneficiaries.
The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions is established in Idaho Code. Designed
as a mandatory system for eligible state and charter School employees, the legislation provided
for other political subdivisions to participate by contractual agreement with PERSI. After 5 years
of credited service, members become fully vested in retirement benefits earned to date.
Members are eligible for retirement benefits upon attainment of the ages specified for their
employment classification. For each month of credited service, the annual service retirement
allowance is 2.0% of the average monthly salary for the highest consecutive 42 months.

The actuarially determined contribution requirements of the School and its employees are
established and may be amended by the PERSI Board of Trustees. For the year ended June 30,
2021, the required contribution rate as a percentage of covered payroll for members was
7.16%. The employer rate as a percentage of covered payroll was 11.94%. The School's
contributions required and paid were $199,092 and $187,200 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

14



NOTE 7 Employee’s Retirement System (Continued)

PERSI is subject to pronouncement issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) and was required to implement GASB 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plan-an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, effective as of June 30, 2014. The statement
established standards and specified the required approach for measuring the pension liability of
contributing entities for benefits provided through the pension plan (the net pension liability).
As of June 30, 2020, the most recent available audited financial statement of PERS| at the time
of issuance, the Plan was reported to be 88.22% funded. The School’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on the School’s share of contributions in the Base Plan pension plan
relative to the total contributions of all participating PERS! Base Plan employers. At June 30,
2020 the School’s proportion was 0.0447090% and the estimated net pension liability was

$1,038,202.

The actuarially determined contribution requirements of the School and its employees are
established and may be amended by the PERSI Board of Trustees.

PERSI issues publicly available stand-alone financial reports that include audited financial
statements and required supplementary information. These reports may be obtained from
PERSI’s website www.persi.idaho.gov. '

NOTE 8 Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan — Sick Leave Plan

The School contributes to the Sick Leave Insurance Reserve Fund (Sick Leave Plan) which is a
cost-sharing multiple-employer. de’fined ‘benefit OPEB plan that covers members receiving
retirement benefits that are adminisf‘cered;byRERS! that covers substantially all employees of
the State of Idaho, its agencies a"hd"various participating political subdivisions. The cost to
administer the plan is financed through the contributions and investment earnings of the plan.

Group retiree health, dental, accident, and life insurance premiums may qualify as a benefit.
Retirees who have a sick leave account can use their balance as a credit towards these
premiums paid directly to the applicable insurance company.

The contribution rate for employees are set by statute at .065% of covered compensation for
state members. Covered school members contribution rates are set by statute based on the
number of sick days offered by the employer. The contribution rate of 1.16% for school
members with nine or ten sick days, 1.26% for school members with 11-14 sick days. If a school
member has more than 14 days of sick leave then the contribution rate will be set by the PERS!
Retirement Board based on current cost and actuarial data and reviewed annually. Beginning
January 1, 2020, PERSI approved an 18-month rate holiday. During the rate holiday, all sick
leave contribution rates are 0%. The School’s contributions required and paid were $0 and
$9,051 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

PERSI is subject to pronouncement issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) and was required to implement GASB 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, effective as of June 30, 2017. The statement

15



NOTE 8 Other Post-Employment Benefit Plan — Sick Leave Plan (Continued)

established standards and specified the required approach for measuring the OPEB asset of
contributing entities for benefits provided through the OPEB plan (the net OPEB asset). As of
June 30, 2020, the most recent available audited financial statement of PERSI at the time of
issuance, the Plan was reported to be 152.87% funded. The School’s proportion of the net OPEB
asset was based on the School’s share of contributions in the Base Plan OPEB plan relative to
the total contributions of all participating PERSI Base Plan employers. At June 30, 2020, the
School’s proportion was 0.1009444% and the estimated OPEB sick leave asset was $124,293.

PERSI issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and the
required supplementary information for the Sick Leave Plan. The reports may be obtained from
PERSI’s website www.persi.idaho.gov.

NOTE 9 Concentration of Credit Risk

Forrest M. Bird Charter Schools, Inc. maintains four checking accounts at a single bank. The
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insures up to $250,000 at an institution for fiscal
year-end 2021 and 2020. At fiscal year-end 2021 cash exceeds FDIC insurance by $1,237,130. At
fiscal year-end 2020, cash exceeded FDIC insurance by $1,060,161.

NOTE10 Implementation of ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers V

Effective in fiscal 2021, the Schoqlﬁas implemented ASU 2014-08, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, and has retrospec’éivély applied the five-step process to their contract revenue for
fiscal 2020. There was no .change |n the revenue reported in fiscal 2020 based on the
retrospective application.

NOTE11  COVID-19 Pandemic

in March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) as a pandemic, which continues to spread throughout the United States. There have
been mandates from governing authorities requiring forced closures of schools, businesses, and
other facilities and organizations. While the disruption is expected to be temporary, the current
circumstances are evolving and dynamic. The full extent and duration of the impact of COVID-
19 on the School’s operations and financial performance is currently unknown, and depends on
future developments that are uncertain and unpredictable. Because of this, it may have a
material adverse impact on the School’s business, results of operations, financial position, and
cash flows.

NOTE 12 Change in Accounting Principles

As described in the “Reports Required by the State” section of Note 2, the School reports
financial information to the State in accordance with accounting principles general accepted in

16



NOTE 12  Change in Accounting Principles {(Continued)

the United States of America for governmental entities. During the year ended June 30, 2021,
the School adopted new accounting guidance by implementing the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which establishes criteria for identifying and reporting
fiduciary activities. The implementation of this statement has resulted in a change in the
presentation of the financial statements for the following activities:

Governmental Accounting Standards:

e The student activity was previously reported as an agency fund and has been restated as
a restricted special revenue fund of the School.

The beginning governmental activities net position and other governmental funds fund balance
has been increased by $41,683 as of June 30, 2020 to reflect this change.

Not-For-Profit Accounting Standards:

e The student activity was previously reported as-a liability in the basic financial
statements and has been restated as net assets with donor restrictions.

The beginning net assets with donor restrictions balance has been increased, and the due to
student funds liability balance decreased, by $41,683 as of June 30, 2020 to reflect this change.

17



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

Sandpoint, Idaho

SCHEDULE | - STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Federal receivable
State support receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Land
Buildings and land improvements
Fixtures and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Cash with donor restrictions
Net OPEB asset - sick leave

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net OPEB - sick leave related items
Pension related items

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt
Net pension liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net OPEB - sick leave related items
Pension related items

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Adjustments to conform with GAAP:

Unamortized debt issuance costs
Pension and OPEB related items:

Net OPEB asset - sick leave
Deferred outflow of resources
Deferred inflow of resources
Net pension liability

Total adjustments to conform with GAAP

Net Assets - end of year (GAAP)

1,455,879
22,778
47,662
22,546

1,548,866

14,227
4,985,946
148,322
{1,792,702)
52,343
124,293

3,532,429

5,081,295

65,001
423,583
488,584

327,578
93,854
421,432

2,499,675
1,038,202

33T

3,959,309

31,79
210,806
242,602

762,264
605,704

$ 1,367,968

18,333

(124,293)
(488,584)
242,602

1,038,202

686,260

$ 2,054,228

19



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, Idaho

SCHEDULE il - STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in Net
Program Revenues Position
Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and Governmental
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental activities:
Instruction 1,910,910 - 434,016 - (1,476,894)
Support Services:
School/business administration 691,411 - - - {691,411)
Maintenance/custodial 176,773 - - - (176,773)
Transportation 154,170 - - - {154,170)
Student activities 3,515 - . - - (3,515)
Debt services 104,838 - ’ - - (104,838)
Depreciation, unallocated 143,203 - - . - {143,203)
Total School District S 3,184,820 $ - $ 434,016 S - {2,750,804)
General revenues
Federal and State aid not restricted to specific purposes 2,595,696
Other ) 27,279
Interest and investment earnings 1,508
“Totat generél revenues 2,624,483
Change in net position (126,321)
Net position - beginning, as restated {Note 12) 1,494,289

Net position - ending S 1,367,968




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

Sandpoint, Idaho

SCHEDULE lif - BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Assets:

Cash and investments

Federal receivable

State support program receivable

Due from other funds

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and benefits
Accrued interest
Due to other funds
Total liahilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred revenue

fund balance:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total fund balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCE

June 30, 2021
Special Plant

General Revenue Facility Totals
1,464,248 43,974 1,508,222
- 22,779 22,779
47,662 - 47,662
- 33,733 33,733
- 22,546 22,546
1,511,910 123,032 1,634,942
$ 1,511,910 $ 0123032 $ 1,634,942
17,685 693 18,378
303,544 - 303,544
5,656 . - 5,656
-6;780 26,953 33,733
. 333,665 27,646 361,311
- 22,546 22,546
1,589 72,840 74,429
1,176,656 - 1,176,656
1,178,245 95,386 1,273,631
$ 1511910 § 123,032 S $ 1,634,942

21



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, Idaho

SCHEDULE IV - RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES
TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
June 30, 2021

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds:
Cost of capital assets
Accumulated depreciation

Certain pension related items are recorded as a deferred outflow or.
inflow of resources and recognized in future periods for governmental
activities: ‘

Deferred outflow of resources

Deferred inflow of resources

Certain OPEB - sick leave related items are recorded as a deferred outflow or inflow of
resources and recognized in future periods for governmental activities:

Deferred outflow of resources ‘

Deferred inflow of resources

Total Net OPEB asset for PERS! - sick leaye'isia longftérm asset and is not
available to pay current year expenditures, theréfore is not reported
as an asset in governmental funds,

Long-term liabilities ai"e not due and‘payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported as Iia}bilkit‘ies in the funds. Long-term liabilities
at year-end consist of the following: '

Note payable ‘

Net pension liability

Total net position - governmental activities S

1,273,631

5,148,495
{1,792,702)

423,583
{210,806)

65,001
(31,796)

124,293

(2,593,529)

{1,038,202)

1,367,968

22



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, Idaho

SCHEDULE V - COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Special
General Revenue Plant
Fund Funds Facility Total
REVENUES

Loeal 22,981 5,806 - 28,787

State 2,507,265 88,431 - 2,595,696

federal - 434,016 - 434,016
Total revenues 2,530,246 528,253 - 3,058,499
EXPENDITURES

instruction 1,507,945 306,2‘50 - 1,814,195

Support 780,298 210,807 - 991,105

Non-instruction - 3,515 - 3,515

Capital asset program 43,125 5,390 - 48,515

Debt service - - 195,471 195,471
Total expenditures 2,331,368 525,962‘ 195,471 3,052,801
Excess (deficiency) of revenues :
over (under) expenditures 198,878 2,291 (195,471) 5,698
Other financing sources {(uses): - -

Transfers in {out) ' {195,471) - 195,471 -
Change in fund balance Do 3407 2,291 - 5,698
Fund balance - beginning of year, as restated (see Note 12) 1,174,838 93,095 - 1,267,933
Fund balance - end of year i $ 1,178,245 $ 95,386 S - $ 1,273,631
Adjustments to conform with GAAP:

Unamortized debt issuance cos!;é . - - 18,333 18,333

Capitalize capital objects o 153,358 40,637 4,954,500 5,148,495

Accumulated depreciation L (96,817} (17,511) {1,678,374) {1,792,702)

Long-term debt : - - {2,593,529) (2,593,529}

Net Assets - End of year (GAAP) . S 1,23478 S 118,512 § 700,930 $ 2,054,228




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Sandpoint, ldaho

SCHEDULE Vi - RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended june 30, 2021

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:
Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental
funds as expenditures. However, for governmental activities those costs are
capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual
depreciation expense in the statement of activities:
Capital outlays
Depreciation expense

Net pension liability adjustments:
Fiscal year 2020 employer PERSI contributions recognized as pension expense in
the current year.
Fiscal year 2021 employer PERSI contributions deferred to subsequent year
Pension related amortization revenue (expense)

Net OPEB assef - sick leave adjustment:
Fiscal year 2020 employer PERSI Sick Leave contributions recognized as OPEB
expense in the current year
OPEB related amortization revenue (expense}

Repayments of the principal of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term debt in the statement of net position:

Debt consolidation principal payments

Net change in net position - governmental activities

48,515

(143,203)

(187,200)
199,092

(128,731)

(9,051)
(2,074)

5,698

{94,688)

(116,839)

(11,125)

90,633

S  {126,321)

24



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

Sandpoint, Idaho

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE Vil - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES
Local:
Interest
Contributions/donations
Other
Total local

State:
Base support
Transportation
Benefit support
Lottery
Other state support
Total state

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Instruction:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies-materials
Total instruction

Support:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies-materials
Total support
Capital objects
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer out

Change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year (budget basis)

Adjustments to conform with GAAP:
Capitalized capital objects

Accumulated depreciation

Net Assets - end of year (GAAP)

Variance
Favorable
Actual Budget {Unfavorable)
1,508 - 1,508
17,130 - 17,130
4,343 - 4,343
22,981 - 22,981
1,981,815 1,938,424 43,351
30,5?4 70,000 {39,416)
260,831 266,375 (5,544)
23,171 19,305 3,866
210,864 176,220 34,644
2,507,265 2,470,324 36,941
2,530,246 2,470,324 58,922
1,080,602 1,036,401 {44,201)
412,399 375,105 {37,294)
9,238 27,000 17,762
5,706 - {5,706)
1,507,945 1,438,506 (69,439)
375,474 368,932 {6,542)
146,517 146,974 457
237,252 259,790 22,538
21,055 60,746 39,691
780,298 836,442 56,144
43,125 - (43,125)
2,331,368 2,274,948 {56,420)
198,878 195,376 3,502
{195,471) - (195,471)
3,407 195,376 S (191,969)
1,174,838
1,178,245
153,358
{96,817)
$ 1,234,786

25



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

Sandpoint, Idaho

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE VIl - STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

INSTRUCTION
Secondary:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies-materials
Total secondary

Special education:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies-materials
Total special education

TOTAL INSTRUCTION
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies-materials

Total instruction

SUPPORT
School administration:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies-materials
Total school administration

Building-care (custodial):
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies-materials

Total building-care {custodial)

Maintenance - buildings & equipment (studehteoccupied):
Salaries :
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies-materials
Total maintenance - buildings & equipment (student-occupied)

Maintenance - grounds:
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies-materials

Total maintenance - grounds

Pupil-to-school transportation:
Purchased services

TOTAL SUPPORT
Salaries
Benefits
Purchased services
Supplies-materials

Total support

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Variance

Favorable
Actual Budg {Unf; ble)
969,396 935,401 (33,995)
373,185 339,045 {34,140)
2,600 27,000 24,400
5,568 - {5,568)
1,350,743 1,301,446 {49,303}
111,206 101,000 {10,208)
39,214 36,060 {3,154)
6,638 - {6,638}
138 - {138)
157,196 137,060 {20,136)
1,080,602 1,036,401 {44,201)
412,399 375,105 (37,294)
9,238 27,000 17,762
5,706 - {5,706}
$ 1,507,845 1,438,506 $ {69,439)
300,638 296,018 {4,620)
124,009 124,554 545
37,125 33,100 (4,025)
6,414 21,746 15,332
468,186 475,418 7,232
42,217 64,914 22,697
16,118 20,853 4,735
39,189 48,130 9,001
1,581 3,000 1,419
39,105 136,957 37,852
24,619 - {24,619)
4,730 - {4,730)
1,580 4,500 2,910
12,569 36,000 23,431
43,508 40,500 {3.008)
8,000 8,000 -
1,660 1,567 {93)
5,178 9,000 3,822
491 - {491}
15,329 18,567 3,238
154,170 165,000 10,830
375,474 368,932 {6,542)
146,517 146,974 457
237,252 259,790 22,538
21,055 60,746 39,691
$ 780,298 836,442 3 56,144

26



PYE'ET I S SE88 s {1579 $ BT S OfES 5 - S PLE'EY S 6ST'9 $ T $ FONVIVE ONMS NV S3DHN0SaY

40 SMOINI G3HYI430 'SALLNEVII IVIOL

M - - L1589 6027'8T - - M . YLE'EY 65192 4 d3ueieq pun;j (ei0)
. - - 115'g {0L6°E) N - - VEEY 85192 [4 pansay
- . N - [TA ¥4 - . - - - dqepusdsuon
‘ : H :3auejeq pung
- T 3 - - - - - - - $I3INOSIL 10 SMOYU PRLIJAQ
YYE'EY - S£8°8 : 0L6°€ 05 " M M - sapiqey jei0L
PYEET - S£8°8 M L08'€ . - R - - - spunj sayto 03 ang
- - - . £91 .. DES . - - . ajgeded sunony
: . ssapigen
3INVIVA GNNY GNY SIDUNOSIY
40 SMOTINI GI¥Y3430 ‘S3Lnlevn
PYE'ET s - H 5£8'g ERAY) $ [73¥ {30 § oS $ - $ [ $  &st'oz s T S $3¥N0SI 40
SMOTILNG QINYI4IA ONV SLISSY WL0L
B - - B = IS < < - - $32IN0SBL JO SMOPING pasiajeg
42313 - SER'S 415’9 A% 44 (3] - YLEEY 651'92 T 558 |el0),
< - - < TetY et - - S - - dsuadxa piedasg
br6'el - se8'g - - - - - - - esapag
33[qeA1a3l 2410
- - - L1579 - 1134 - - 651'9Z z SpUnj Jayio woyj ang
- - - - - - - vL6'EY - - 4sed
32437
$32¥N0S34 40
SMOTILNO G3NHIII0 ONY S13SSY
Bysuopepdoiddy . v Ao uleadol] ojseg TTTamgy Touy3a) TR T T Tenenpi TINAIBY FUTIT:) uein
it Bujaoaduy auwnsgng oye5 fesjuysag S AT uapnig 308 uayy
Jaigey pue puz ooy vss3 feueissajoug
asuodsay ‘Biy SnijARUOIOY -] IRLL
SRIARUOI0) {s3uvo) 1 yass3
{wsuud) i yassa

1202 '€ suny
133HS 3INVIVE DNINISINOD - X1 JING3HIS
SANN INNIATY TVIIILS

CHEP] ‘MBSO
"IN! "STOOHDS H2LUVHD QYIS "W 1SI¥Y04



8¢

TEOEZT 3 s - s - s - s - T 5 et 89T S Tsze 3
98E'SE - - - - Ea - SZ§

OvaZL - - - - {867}, (697} s2§

9v5'2T - - - - . 861 691 -

gvaLT - - - - 261 [TH -

€56'92 - - - = T 631 -

€69 - . - - - - -

TR . T

TEQ'ELT $ $ - s - $ - s - $ 861 691 $ ST§ S
ZEQ'ETT - - - - 861 691 S5

vs'zT - - - - 861 691 -

6LL2T - - - - - . -

EEL'EE N - - - - - 57§

VLG'EY - - - - - - -

jeor I35 - S3IUVD SINT - S3UVD uonnguIsig papuajg {inop pue f tz-g93v
[epads ] 93ueisiq uRPHYD B3 uopeanpy juapedy pue {00435 119)
- S3UVD - SI¥VD $5a[OWIOY 40§ Bujpoddng jeany oddng Juspnis aued
vopesnpy vas3i vss3 vssa vaal
VX1 3L Wit oL a-ARlL Y-N oL
1202 ‘o€ dunf
{0INNILNGD) L33HS JINVIVE ONINIBNOD - XI JINAIHDS
SANNL INNIAIY VIDILS

IONVIVE QNN ONV SIDUNOSIY
40 SMOYINI QIYY¥243Q ‘SILNBYNR WIOL

3suejeq puny jeIoL
pasey
2jqepuadsuon

2Juejeq pung

$32.N0524 JO SMOU] POLIBJRQ

sapiqet jeios,
Spuny Jayio 0y ang
djqeAed sunody
sapqen
AONVIVE NN ONY SIDUNO0SIY
40 SMOTINI G3¥Y343a ‘SIMNEVH

$3IDBNOSIH 40
SMOTLNO A3YY2430 ONV S13S5V WI0L

$321N0SD1 JO SMOJJINO PasIajaQ

519552 |104,
asuadxa piedasd
|esapaz
53|QEAIRIDS JBYIO
Spuny Jaylo woJj ang
ysed
is1assy
§30¥N0S3IY 40
SMOTILNO GIYYIIIQ ONV S13SSV

otjep] ‘Modson
*INI'STOOHDS HILYVHD Quid "W LS34Y04



6¢

- s - § - S 18r'er $ vt - - vLE'EY £S9'0E
- - - [{5351] {3¥97%9] - - - Tosv’s),
- . . 188 609'81 - - . vt
- - . 3441 £02'81 - - PLEEY 65192
N - - L1879 60287 . - E89'TY IBEYeL
- . - . - - - .nMN.N .
PYE'EL BLLLL vI6'3L [375 STE'T9 0£9'S £92'ST S18°E -

v - B GEES - - - - -

- - - - - - - SISE -

T T T T ~ T = 695 T

. . . . . . . 9v5'z .
8107 19651 1SE'L EvZ SIE19 06 - - -

€27 5 3 €07 ¥EEY - - B -

. S05°¢ . oy §62BE 06 . . .
67T 166'T . - . . - - .
092 2443 000°L - 9£9'81 . - - -
96’6 89211 £95'69 08 N £94°ST - -

- Svv's 98 o8 - - - -

- oLyt 6L - - - £92°51 - -

87 {744 28'st - . . M - -
Sev's 815t [144] - b ‘ - - -
e (37453 YiI69L [37%3 STE'Y: 0£9'S €92'ST 908'S -
PrE'Er 6TLLT ¥16'9L - - . - - - M

- - - £1L'5 SZET 0£9's £92'5T - .

- - - - - - - 908's -

DY suohiejsdosddy By ﬁt:uum swesdnigd jseg asngy ojouyan] uojieInp3 S2ARRY e

iedng nug 1R $49A0Q wspnig a8
39y pue PUR 3| ¥553 levoissaynig
‘PIV al “wrapi
STUjABUOIO] {5340} fu3ss3
(ysyud) 1 y3ssa

IINVIVE ORI NI SIONVHD ONV ¢

TO ‘€ JUnf papu3 Jeap oyl oy
.

SGNA 3NNIAIY VD35

02 - X 3INA3HIS

{dvVD} seah jo pua - s1assy Jop

asuddxa uopepudag
NR{qo impdes pazyeides
14UV Yiim wiojuod o} siuaunsalpy

Je3A J0 pud-d3uLieq puny
{21 210N 235) paessas se ‘seaA jo BuwuiBag-sauejeq pung
a3uejeq punj uj ofueys
SUNUPUILKS (2101
spagojeyde)

UOHINASULLOY (R10)

sjepdew-sapding

$33|AIDS paseydng
UBINASUIUON

uoddns jejog
sjeuairw-sayddng
SIANALDS paseying
syouog
sajejes

iuoddng

UORINASUL RIOL
sjgtdjew-saddng
SIS paseysIng
siyauag
satiejes
suopannsy|
SIUNLIONIIXD

$INUBAL {RI0L

{esopad
aeg
{007

SINNIAZY

oyep] upodpues

*ONI 'STOOHDS Y3LUVHI QHIR *W 153¥H04



0g

TIS'BIT s - - s - s - $ - s - $ - - S s%§
{r1s'21) - - - - - . - - -

LEY'OV - - - - - - - - -

9BE'SE - - . - - - - - 1141

S60°€6 - - - . - - - - . S8

627 - - . . - - . - -

296°S2S $59'7 £S9'E VBE'SE S00°E0T 0057 Ov6'ET 29T 8201 VLYS
06E'S - - . - - - . - -

STS'E - - - - - - i - -

695 N - - - - . - - .

9v6'C - - - . - - - . -

408012 - €5T'E 942'10T - M 158'L 1144 25T
yI0%TT . EST'E viL's6 A - 158'L L144 414

SOT'8P - - 795's - - - - 8E6

UY'Y - - - - - - - -

91Z'vE - - - - - - - -

0ST'S0€ $59'7 00S f22443 67L'1 0082 Ov6'ET IIP'9L L50°'IT £65°ES
$06'92 - 00s oy 6v6 - - TIv'9 - 50T

8ET'TY - - osy 08L . 266°T . - 66902
964'6Y - - 156'01 - - £6L°T - - STY'ET
1te'L8T ¥59'7 - BOV'EL - 0052 0516 00001 LS0'TT 892'6T
€ST'8ZS ¥59'7 ES9'E PBE'G6 S00'E0T 0052 O¥6'EY 9T'VT 81T &vL'PS
910'vEY $59'C £S9'E Y8E'66 SO00'EDT 08T OV5'ET 9T 82T 6VL'S
TEV'88 - - - - - - - - -

508's - - - - - - - - -

(2208 T3S - 52UV SW1T-S34vD vonnginsia papuaig o), pue uspanisu] anep|ut Juaugpppug Tz€ o3y
jepads \ ddues|g udapHyd 1303 )); P pue jooyds ﬂdwv
“S3HVD - SIHYD SSI|RWOY Jo} Jujuoddag feiny uoddns Juapms qued
uopeanpy vis3 vssa vs§s3 vaai
YeXE 3L VSR g-AshitL VAL OB

TTOZ '0€ BUN[ PIpU3 18IA 23 404

{Q3INNILNOD) 3INVIVE NN NI SIONVHD ONV 'STENLIGNIIXS ‘SINNIATY 30 ANIWILVILS SNINIGINO - X FINGIHDS

SANNJ 3NNIAIY VIDIdS

{dvvo) Je2A JO pud - 1055y 1aN

asuadxa uonepasdag
$193(qo jeydes pazgeyded
1dVVD Yitm Wiojuod 0 stuaunsn(py

1224 jo pud-dduejeq punj
(zx 210N 225) patelsad se “1e34 J0 BujuwiBag-aduejeq puny
2duejeq pun) uy 3Bueyy
sanipuadxs jeiol
s1afgo jeydes

UDRINASU-UOU [210)

sjepateusagiddng

SAYAIBS paseLdINg
UGRINAISUL-UON

uoddns jeios
sjelatew-sajddng
S33[AIDS paseydng
syjoudg
sapees

uoddng

uoponIsu; jeloL
sjepatews-sa)ydang
$IDIAIDS PASRYIING
siyausg
sauejes
UORIANSY
SAUNUANIEXI

sanuasaal |gl0t

jesapay
aes
12301

SINNIAIY

*INI ‘STOOHIS YILYVHD GYI8 " 1STHYOS

oyep] Jujodg



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

Sandpoint, Idaho

PLANT FACILITY FUND

SCHEDULE XI - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Debt service principal
Debt service interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over{under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfer in

Total other financing sources

Change in fund balance

Fund balance-beginning,df year‘
Fund balance-end of yearf(budgetbasis)

Adjustments to conform with GAAP:
Unamortized debt issuance costs

Capitalized capital objects
Accumulated depreciation
Long-term debt

Net assets - end of year (GAAP)

90,633
104,838

195,471

(195,471)

195,471

195,471

18,333
4,954,500
(1,678,374)
(2,593,529)

S . 700,930

31






FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOL
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2021-2022)



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOL
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2021-2022)

LEA

# Name:

Superintendent/ Name: Mary J. Jensen Phone: 208-265-9737
Charter Administrator | E-mail: maryjensen@forrestbirdcharterschool.org

CIP Contact

Name: Mary J. Jensen Phone: 208-265-9737
E-mail: maryjensen@forrestbirdcharterschool.org

Narrative: Mission and Vision

Mission: We create innovative learning opportunities by fostering community, individuality, and

imagination.

Vision:

*

Limit our community to approximately 50 students at each of the middle and high school grade
levels, 6-12 (prospective enrollment of 350 students, not to exceed 400 total). (Actual grade level
enrollments may vary) Provide each student with at least one positive adult adviser/advocate to
support student success.

Provide students access to innovative pathways, maximizing their post-secondary academic
and career opportunities.

Facilitate a positive and safe community culture by fostering accountability through high
behavioral standards and academic success through integration and project-based learning.

Focus on student-family-teacher relationships.

Embrace the needs of the student body as the primary focus of our school; therefore, encouraging
individuality.

Work in collaborative relationships within and outside of the school to promote leadership and
mentoring partnerships, and service the greater community.

Actively encourage creativity and fun within our school.

Narrative: Community Involvement in Plan Development

Community Involvement in the development of the Combined District Plan (or CIP and Literacy Plan)

Forrest M. Bird Charter School (FBCS) is committed to having community, family, and staff
involvement in the development of the plan. In order to have community, family and staff involvement,
FBCS had developed a Planning Committee, which addresses the needs of the school while offering
solutions to issues presented. The Planning Committee makes recommendations to the Board of
Trustees.

Parent Notification of College and Career Advising and Mentoring Services

FBCS has an Academic Advisor to aide in College and Career Advising and Mentoring. The
Academic Advisor provides information on the district website and school Canvas page, emails and



FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOL
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2021-2022)

mails families information, provides information during Back to School and Orientation nights, Parent
Class Meetings, Family Summit, Parent/ Teacher Conference, and more.

In addition to the Academic Advisor providing families and students with information, our advocacy
and advisory coaches provide information to students and families. Advocacy and advisory classes
meet each morning during the school year.

Parental Involvement in Students’ Individual Reading Plans

FBCS is a 6-12 grade level Charter School, so Individual Reading Plans are not required

Continuous Improvement Plan Metrics

Performance Metrics Instructions:

Provide your report card link, Progress Report, and set Benchmarks (performance targets) using the
2021-22 Continuous Improvement Plan Metrics — Template Part 2. The template includes two (2)
tabs: Instructions and Examples and Metrics. Please review the Instructions and Examples tab before
entering your data into the Metrics tab.

LINK to LEA / District Report | hitps://idahoschools.org/schools/1365
Card with Demographics and
Previous Data (required):

Section I: Student Achievement & Growth Metrics - Current & Previous Year Performance

Targets (blue shaded metrics are required)
Goal Performance Metric 2020-21 2021-22
Performance Performance
Targets Targets
(Previously (LEA Chosen)
chosen by LEA)
All students will | 4-year cohort graduation rate 2020 cohort 2021 cohort
be college and 87.3% 87.0%
career ready
5-year cohort graduation rate (optional 2019 cohort 2020 cohort
metric) Not required 85.0%
% of students who meet the college ready | 20.0% 20.0%

benchmark on the college entrance exam
(optional metric)

All students will | % students who score proficient on the 33.0% 31.0%
be preparedto | grade 8 Math ISAT
transition from % students who make adequate growth N/A 75.0%

middle school/ | on the grade 8 Math ISAT




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOL
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2021-2022)

junior high to % students who score proficient on the 55.0% 55.0%
high school grade 8 ELA ISAT
% students who make adequate growth N/A 75.0%
on the grade 8 ELA ISAT
All students will | % students who score proficient on the 45.0% 30.0%
be prepared to | grade 6 Math ISAT
transition from % students who make adequate growth N/A 75.0%
grade 6 to grade | on the grade 6 Math ISAT
7 % students who score proficient on the 57.0% 60.0%
grade 6 ELA ISAT
% students who make adequate growth N/A 75.0%

on the grade 6 ELA ISAT

Section II: Literacy Proficiency & Growth Metrics - Current & Previous Year Targets (Section
Il data is required)

Goal Performance Metric 2020-21 2021-22
Performance Performance
Targets Targets
(Previously (LEA Chosen)
chosen by LEA)
All students will | % students who score proficient on the N/A N/A
demonstrate the | Kindergarten Spring IRI
reading % students who score proficient on the N/A N/A
readiness Grade 1 Spring IRI
needed to % students who score proficient on the N/A N/A
transition to the | Grade 2 Spring IRI
next grade % students who score proficient on the N/A N/A
Grade 3 Spring IRI
% students who score proficient on the N/A N/A
Grade 4 ELA ISAT
% students who make adequate growth N/A N/A

on the Grade 4 ELA ISAT

Section lll: How LEA Measures Progress Towards Literacy Goals and Targets (required)
Instructions: To indicate how your LEA intends to measure your progress towards your literacy
goals and targets, you may choose to complete either Section llI.A or Section Ill.B. Section LA
allows you to identify at least one LEA Chosen Performance Metric (note that it must be distinctly
different than the metrics listed in Sections | and Il), which may be consistent with previously
chosen LEA chosen metrics. Section Iil.B allows you to address your plan to measure progress
through a short narrative.

Section Ill.LA: Measuring Literacy Progress - LEA Chosen Performance Metrics (at least 1)




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOL
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2021-2022)

Performance Metric

2020-21
Performance
Targets
(previously
chosen by LEA)

SY 2020-21
Results
(if available)

2021-22
Performance
Targets

(LEA Chosen)

FBCS is a 6-12 school; thus, this matrix

is not available for the school.

Section ll.B: Narrative on Measuring Literacy Progress
Instructions: [f you are choosing to use section IlI.B to address the Section lil requirement, please
use the box below to provide a brief narrative describing how your LEA is measuring your progress
towards your LEA's literacy goals and targets. Please note that your description must include
measurements that are distinctly different than those required in Sections | and II, above.

FBCS grade levels are 6-12; thus, this is not available for the school.

Section IV: College and Career Advising and Mentoring Performance Metrics (Section IV

data is required)

Goal Performance 2020-21 SY 2020-21 2021-22
Metric Performance Results Performance
Targets Targets
(previously (LEA Chosen)
chosen by LEA)
All students will | # of HS students 5
be college and | who graduate with
career ready an associate's
degree ora CTE
certificate
% of students with 8th 100.0% | 8th 100.0% | 100.0%
learning plans grade grade

created and
reviewed in 8th
grade




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOL
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2021-2022)

% of students whose | 9th 100.0% | 9th 100.0% | 100.0%
learning plans are | grade grade
reviewed annually 10th 100.0% | 10th 100.0% | 100.0%
by grade level grade grade
11th 100.0% | 11th 100.0% | 100.0%
 grade grade
12th 100.0% | 12th 100.0% | 100.0%
grade grade
# students who Go # # # # Not Required
On to a form of Enrolled | 2019 Enrolled | 2020
postsecondary cohort cohort
education within 1 20 41 17 38
year of HS
graduation
% students who Go | 48.8% 44.7%
On to a form of ‘
postsecondary
education within 1
year of HS
graduation
# students who Go | # # # # Not Required
On to a form of Enrolled | 2018 Enrolled | 2019
postsecondary cohort cohort
education within 2 20 41 12 39
years of HS
graduation
% students who Go | 48.8% 30.8%

On to a form of
postsecondary
education within 2
years of HS
graduation

Section V: How LEA Measures Progress Towards College & Career Advising & Mentoring

Goals (required)

Instructions: To indicate how your LEA intends to measure your progress towards your college and
career advising and mentoring goals and targets, you may choose to complete either Section V.A
or Section V.B. Section V.A allows you to identify at least one LEA Chosen Performance Metric
(note that it must be distinctly different than the metrics listed in Sections | and 1V), which may be
consistent with previously chosen LEA chosen metrics. Section V.B allows you to address your
plan to measure progress through a short narrative.

Section V.A: College and Career Advising - LEA Chosen Performance Metrics (at least 1)

Performance Metric

2020-21

Targets

Performance

(previously
chosen by LEA)

SY 2020-21

Results

(if available)

2021-22
Performance
Targets

(LEA Chosen)




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOL
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2021-2022)

% of high school seniors that have had | 100.0% 95.0% 100.0%
one-to-one meetings with an advisor

% of high school students who 80.0% 80.0% 90.0%
complete resumes

% of advanced opporutnites advising 100.0% 95.0% 100.0%
plans completed

Section V.B: Narrative on Measuring College and Career Advising and Mentoring Progress
Instructions: If you are choosing to use section V.B to address the Section V requirement, please
use the box below to provide a brief narrative describing how your LEA is measuring your progress
towards your LEA's college and career advising and mentoring goals and targets. Please note that
your description must include measurements that are distinctly different than those required in
Sections | and 1V, above.

Section VI: Report of Progress Narrative (required)

Instructions: In the provided box, please address the progress your LEA made towards your 2020-
2021 Performance Targets (as chosen for your 2020-2021 plan(s) and included in the sections
above). We recommend your reflection include a) your successes in meeting performance targets;
b) your areas of challenge (including those where previously set performance targets were not met);
and c) any plans you have to build on your success and/or address challenges. You may expand
the size of the box, if needed.




FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOL
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PLAN (2021-2022)

During the 2019-20 school year, we fell short of all of our targets by 3% or more. This school
year, FBCS began in a hybrid set up, went to online from November to December, went back
to hybrid from Jan. through April, then finished the year in full-time in the building satus due
to COVID. Approximately 40 students elected to be online for the school year, and many
students went to online instruction for at least two additional weeks due to testing positive
for COVID or to quarantines. Face to face instruction is the best way for our students to
learn, so having the verity of schedules decreased the overall testing performance of our
students. Another possible reason for the not reaching our targeted goals this year was we
had to deviate from our Problem Based Learning (PBL) philosophy due to being online. One
of the reasons many of our students choose this school is the PBL philosophy. This trend
can also be seen state-wide. Our graduation rate also did not meet the target. With students
either being out of school or families electing students not be in the school buildings,
several of our seniors decided to not graduate and begin working full-time. For this year, we
are hoping to be in school more, which will help greatly for each student's education. We are
also providing additional focus on student mental heaith with providing positive student
interactions and activities. Each department of the school is dedicated to providing the best
educational experience this year with the following goals: 1) Creating healthy civil
discourse among students; 2) determining the each student’s "starting point” in Math and
English in order to work individually with students on where they are and move them
forward from that point. 3) Increase reading speed and comprehension. We are also
planning to return to our Project Based Learning philosophy this year as we plan to be full-
time face-to-face instruction.

Section VIiI: Staff Performance - Previous Year Results & Current Year Performance Targets
{Section VIll is required; metrics should be aggregated by grade and subject, as appropriate)

! 2021-22
Grade(s} Subject Performance Metric Assessment Tool 2020-21 Results Performance Targets
{LEA Chosen)
9-12 All subjects 90% of the students showed measurable student growth Pre-Post Tests 90.0% 90.0%
6-8 All subjects 75% of the students showed measurable student growth Pre-Post Tests 75.0% 80.0%
Teach
6-13 All subjects 83% of the students showed measurable student growth eacher Constructed 83.0% 87.0%
Assessements




CONTRACT FOR
STUDENT TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

This Contract is made and entered into between Harlow’s School Bus Service, Inc. of Montana, a North
Dakota corporation with offices at 3077 US Highway 2, Libby MT, 59923, 406.293.8845 (hereinafter
referred to as “Harlow’s” or “Contractor”) and Sandpoint Charter School, DBA Forrest M. Bird Charter
School, 614 S. Madison Avenue, Sandpoint ID 83864, 208.255.7771 (hereinafter referred to as

“FMBCS?).

1. Contract Term
This Contract shall commence on the date that this Contract is fully executed under authorization

granted by the FMBCS Board and be effective September 3rd, 2021 until June 30, 2026 (the
“Contract Term™), with an option of up to an additional five (5) year contract. This contract includes
the following academic years: 2021-2022, 2022-2023, 2023-2024, 2024-2025, 2025-2026 as

provided herein.

2. Termination
Contractor may terminate this contract by written notice of termination in the event FMBCS fails

to perform any obligation of FMBCS under this contract. Contractor will continue to provide
transportation services no more than ninety (90) days from the date of the written notice of
termination to FMBCS. FMBCS agrees to pay Contractor for transportation services under the
payment schedule of this contract through the last day transportation services are provided by
Contractor.

FMBCS may terminate this contract with ninety (90) days written notice of termination if any issue
is brought to the Contractor and resolution of that issue cannot be agreed upon between FMBCS
and Contractor in a timely manner or if FMBCS needs to discontinue service.

3. Insurance
Contractor will be required to furnish, prior to the signing of the contract, one million dollars

($1,000,000) single limit for bodily injury and property damage liability as well an additional nine
million dollars ($9,000,000) umbrella policy (or as mutually agreed upon) and such other insurance
as required by the state of Idaho, if any. The policy shall name FMBCS as an additional insured
and provide that such coverage may not be cancelled or materially changed without thirty (30) days
prior written notice to FMBCS.

Any accident involving student transportation shall be reported to the school transportation
representative as soon as possible and no later than one business (1) day of the accident. Complete
Idaho State reporting forms as well Contractors documents will be submitted no later than three (3)

business days after the date of the accident.

4. Assignability

Contractor shall not assign or transfer all or any part of its interest in the contract without the written
approval of FMBCS.

5. Force Majeure

In the event that Contractor shall fail at any time to provide transportation herein agreed to be
provided soley and by reason of extreme weather conditions or impassable road conditions, act of
God, fire, riots, war, picketing civil commotions or unavailability of fuel, such failure on the part
of the Contractor shall not be deemed a breach of the Contract. The determination as to whether
road conditions are such as to make it unsafe to transport pupils shall be made by FMBCS.

Forrest M. Bird Charter Schools Student Transportation Contract 2021-2026
Page 1 of 7



6. General Management

At the present time, FMBCS has three (3) General Transportation routes, operating one hundred
and thirty-four (134) days per year or per approved FMBCS calendar. The Contractor shall provide
for all vehicle(s), driver(s), as well as the maintenance and management of the same, to operate
school buses for FMBCS for the 2021-2026 school years. Contractor’s designated supervisor shall
be readily available for contact by FMBCS representatives to address issues or concerns that arise
during the school year. Contractor will be the primary supplier of bus transportation for FMBCS
during the term of this contract. FMBCS guarantees the Contractor the right of first refusal of any
additional transportation services during the term of this Contract.

The Contractor, with FMBCS’s approval or another mutually agreed upon atrangement may hire a
bus attendant to assist a regular route driver with student control on a school bus if necessary.

Rider discipline exercised by the Contractor will be guided by the FMBCS transportation conduct
policy.

7. Routes
All students whose parents voluntarily enroll in the FMBCS transportation program and who are

eligible for school bus transportation for FMBCS will receive bus transportation services. Due to
safety concerns, any non-eligible rider will be reported to the school. Contractor shall be
responsible for the care and supervision of students during their period of transportation. The
transportation of students shall be deemed to have begun when the student boards the school bus
and shall be deemed to have ended when a student has exited the bus.

Prior to the start of the school year, the Contractor, working in cooperation with FMBCS’s
representative, shall establish routes, pickup points, and identify the students to be transported.
Time schedules and routes will be arranged and adjusted as necessary by the Contractor after
discussion with the designated representative of FMBCS. Pickup times will be established to allow
delivery to each school no later than fifteen (15) minutes prior to its established starting time. An
FMBCS’s representative will designate bus loading and unloading zones at school. Reasonable and
infrequent late arrivals or departures resulting from unexpected traffic delays and mechanical
failure will not be considered a breach of contract.

Contractor will maintain contact with the drivers with a two-way radio system or another form of
communication.

Contractor will maintain an accurate record of miles per bus per route, per day, for General School
Transportation, as well as for Long Field Trips, for calculating any changes in fuel escalation
payments to Contractor. The contractor will attempt to maintain accurate record of students at each
scheduled pick-up and drop-off, per bus route, per day, for General School Transportation.

* Currently this does not include special education students.

8. Vehicle and Maintenance Requirements
Contractor will provide and maintain at Contractor’s expense all buses to be used by Contractor to
perform this contract. Contractor will maintain the insurances on its buses pursuant to Section 3,
above. All school buses shall be DOT certified, comply with Idaho’s specifications and
registrations. All route buses will be equipped with a two-way radio system (or another form of
communication) and a digital camera system (initial two camera lens provided by Contractor).

Fuel for buses used to perform this contract will be paid for by Contractor and reimbursed to
Contractor pursuant to the Fuel Escalation Clause, Section 12, and the Fees and Expenses, Section

I1.
Forrest M. Bird Charter Schools Student Transportation Contract 2021-2026

Page 2 of 7



The contractor agrees to maintain all records or other documents relevant to this contract for three
(3) years after final payment and any person duly authorized by the board shall have full access to
and right to examine any of said materials.

9. Driver Requirements
Qualifications: Only drivers who hold the appropriate license and endorsements as well sustain a
US DOT Medical Examiners Certificate will operate the Contractor’s vehicles. All drivers must
pass a national criminal background check (HireRite) which includes fingerprinting as well as
annual motor vehicle record (MVR) check.
Contractor will conduct driver training which shall not be less than twelve (12) hours per year (or
as required).

10. Activities and Field Trips
Contractor is the primary transportation solution and agrees to provide transportation for student

activities onan as needed basis. Payment will be based on a per mile payment for longer trips (more

than-60_miles round trip)-and-a-straight hourly rate-for-short-trips-(less-than-60-miles-round-trip)}— —— — —
“Down time” shall begin at arrival of the destination and end at departure. straight hourly rate with

a three (3) hour minimum. Hourly rates will be invoiced in quarter hour increments (¥ or .25).

In the event of an overnight trip, FMBCS will pay Contractors lodging directly and driver meals

will be reimbursed as a pass-through cost. FMBCS transportation personnel will work with

Contractor’s management for timely advance scheduling of drivers and buses for all trips. It is

recommended that all activities and field trips be scheduled fourteen (14) days in advance of

scheduled use.

11. Fees And Expenses

Invoice And Payment Terms: Contractor will invoice FMBCS on a Semi-Monthly basis for
services provided under this Contract. All invoices should be sent to FMBCS by email or as set
forth in the Notices provision, Section 24. Payment from FMBCS is due and payable within fifteen
(15) days of receipt of invoice. ACH payment available.

Fees: The fees for Contractor’s services under this Contract (the “Fees”) will be pursuant to the
following payment schedule, subject to the Fuel Escalation Clause, Cost Of Living Escalator and
Government/ School Mandates provisions, Sections 12, 14 and 15 respectively:

General School Transportation —

Cost Per School Bus, Per Day (5 hours): : $430.00

Overage Cost, Per Hour: $86.00
School Field Trips and Activity Transportation -

In-Town Cost Per School Bus, Two (2) Hour Minimum: $172.00

Overage Cost, Per Hour: $86.00

Out-of-Town, 60 Miles RT Minimum: $2.65 per mile

Driver Down-Time $21.25

PPE / Sanitizing Expense Pass Through

o The items may include but not limited to: gloves, mask, disinfectant and hand sanitizer
for the bus, etc. We would want a mutually agreed upon / approved plan.

Forrest M. Bird Charter Schools Student Transportation Contract 2021-2026
Page 3 of 7



¢ School Closures

a) “Closure” shall mean when more than fifty percent (50%) of all students enrolled at an
educational facility served by Contractor are not physically attending class at the
educational facility due to causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence
of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts of God or the public enemy, acts
of the federal, state or local government in its sovereign capacity, fires, floods, epidemics,
quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, unusually severe weather or mechanical
failure of heating, cooling or other environmental systems. Closure includes a “soft
closure,” which shall mean when students are not physically attending school or class, but
instead are attending school remotely, using internet access, video links, or printed
materials.

b) On or before the 5th day of each month after which a Closure on an Instructional Day
occurs, the Contractor shall submit to the District an invoice, which shall identify the
request for payment under this Alternative Payment Schedule and include the date(s) of
the Closure. On or before the 20th day of the month in which the invoice is submitted, the
District shall pay the Contractor as follows:

i. Ifa Closure on five (5) or fewer Consecutive Instructional Days occurs, the
School shall pay the Contractor one hundred percent (100%) of the Daily
Rate per route per Instructional Day the Contractor does not provide
transportation due to a Closure.

ii. IfaClosure on more than five (5) Consecutive Instructional Days and fewer
than twenty (20) consecutive Instructional Days occurs, the District shall
pay the Contractor seventy- five percent (75 %) of the Daily Rate per route
per Instructional Day the Contractor does not provide transportation due to
a Closure.

iii. Ifa Closure on twenty (20) or more Consecutive Instructional Days occurs,
the District shall pay the Contractor Sixty- five percent (65 %) of the Daily
Rate per route per Instructional Day the Contractor does not provide
transportation due to a Closure.

c¢) For the purposes of this Alternative Payment Schedule, the calculation of Consecutive
Instructional Days shall begin anew or reset upon the occurrence of a day when fifty
percent (50%) of all students enrolled at an educational facility served by the Contractor
are physically attending class at the educational facility.

12. Fuel Escalation Clause
Contractor and FMBCS acknowledge that the price and fluctuations in price of fuel have a direct

impact on the cost of transportation and on the total compensation to be paid to Contractor under this
Contract. For all fuel (gas, propane or diesel) purchased by Contractor for this Contract, the price
paid per mile shall be adjusted effective the first day of the month following a change in the actual
cost of fuel purchased by Contractor.

For transportation, the price per mile per bus per route shall be calculated and provided to FMBCS.
Thereafter, an adjustment of one cent per mile shall be made for each five cent per gallon increase or
decrease in the cost of fuel (gas, propane or diesel floor of $2.75 per gallon). The Contractor shall
submit to FMBCS each month the amount of miles driven in the preceding month with a calculation
of increased cost of fuel incurred if any during the preceding month for each bus for each route. The
base price for purposes of this calculation shall be established at $2.75 per gallon for fuel, the
maximum decrease in fuel escalation cost will not exceed the established rate per gallon (no credit

Forrest M. Bird Charter Schools Student Transportation Contract 2021-2026
Page 4 of 7



14.

13.

15.

16

o«

will be awarded). Receipts indicating the most recent cost paid by Contractor for fuel purchases shall
be submitted monthly to substantiate the adjustment.

Option to Renew
FMBCS and Contractor agree to meet by June 30, 2026, to renegotiate any extended years to this

Contract. This Contract may be renewed for an additional term of up to five (5) years, or as mutually
agreed.

Cost of Living Escalator
Upon contract renewal, effective July 1, 2022, and for subsequent years of this contract, general

transportation, field trip and activities and down-time shall increase by the greater of 3.5% or annual
Consumer Price Index (CPI) Urban, All Items determined in April of each year.
hitps://www.bls.gov/cpi/. Contractor will provide FMBCS a formal letter annually.

Complying with Government and/or School Mandates

If during the term of the contract there are any federal, state or local mandates: (a) requiring
modification of Contractor’s equipment or vehicles used to perform the contract, or, (b) which result
in an increase in the business/operational cost of the Contractor during any one school contract yeat,
then FMBCS and the Contractor will negotiate to determine which party will bear the cost of
complying with such mandate(s), including the cost of implementing any mandate(s), and the
Contractor’s rate of payment(s) for services to FMBCS during the remainder of the contract term. If
FMBCS and Contractor are unable to agree on a price adjustment to the contract due to such
mandate(s), then either FMBCS or Contractor may terminate this contract with ninety (90) days
written notice to the other. In the event no agreement can be reached, FMBCS and Contractor agree
to cooperate to transition transportation services back to FMBCS, FMBCS agrees to pay Contractor
at the rates otherwise set forth herein until the transition is complete, and neither FMBCS or Contractor
will make a claim against the either for not completing the term of this contract.

The contract amounts may be adjusted by negotiation between Contractor and the School Board if
mandatory employee health insurance is required by the federal government.

After the signing of this agreement, in the event of new laws, rules and regulations as required by
State or Federal jurisdictions or in the event of exorbitant operational increases that would place new
demands on the Contractor and would substantially increase the cost of this agreement, the Contractor
has the right to renegotiate this agreement. The scope of renegotiations would be limited to the reasons

specified in this paragraph.

Indemnification
Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold FMBCS, its governing board, officers, employees harmless
and promises to defend same from all claims or damage, penalties of any kind related to the operation

and maintenance of the buses or any obligations under this contract.

FMBCS agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Contractor, and all of its affiliated and
related entities and governing board, officers, directors, employees, successors and assigns, attorneys,
insurers, and representatives, individually and in their official capacity, from any and all claims,
actions, damages and liability, including the cost of investigation, litigation expenses, appeal costs and
attorney’s fees, to the extent resulting from any claims or suits which result from any negligent or
intentional action or omission of FMBCS and/or FMBCS’s affiliates and related entities, employees,
agents or representatives arising out of or relating to FMBCS performance or failure to perform any

of its obligations under this Contract.

Forrest M. Bird Charter Schools Student Transportation Contract 2021-2026
Page 5 of 7



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

Nondisclosure

As used in the Contract, “Confidential Information” means any information disclosed by or relating
to a party whether of a technical, business or other nature (including without limitation, all information
relating to FMBCS students transported by Contractor, their families, and the employees of FMBCS
that generally is not known to the public. Each party will not disclose Confidential Information of the
other party without the prior written consent of that party, except as required by law. Each party will
take all reasonable measures to avoid disclose, dissemination or unauthorized use of Confidential
Information provided to it by the other party. '

Governing Law and Jurisdiction
This Contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws in the State of North

Dakota, without regard to its principles of conflict of laws. The Parties consent to exclusive
jurisdiction of the federal and state courts of the State of North Dakota in Burleigh County for all
disputes arising out of this Contract.

Arbitration Clause

In the event a dispute shall arise between the parties to this contract, it is hereby agreed that the dispute
shall be referred to United States Arbitration and Mediation for arbitration in accordance with United
States Arbitration and Mediation Rules of Arbitration. The arbitrator’s decision shall be final and
binding and judgment may be entered thereon. In the event a party fails to proceed with arbitration,
unsuccessfully challenges the arbitrator’s award, or fails to comply with arbitrator’s award, the other
party is entitled of costs of suit including a reasonable attorney’s fee for having to compel arbitration

or defend or enforce the award.

Relationship of Parties

This Contract is not intended and shall not be construed to create an agency, partnership, joint venture,
employment of franchise relationship between FMBCS and Contractor. The Contractor will not
represent or hold itself out to be part of FMBCS or a partner or agent of FMBCS. The contractor shall
not enter into any agreement on FMBCS’s behalf or in FMBCS’s name.

Contractor and FMBCS agree that the relationship of the Parties under this Contract is that of an
independent contractor. Neither Contractor, nor any member, agent, employee, officer or official of
Harlow’s, shall be held or deemed in any way to be an agent, employee, officer or official of FMBCS.

Severability

If any portion of this Contract shall to any extent be declared unenforceable or illegal by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Contract shall not be affected thereby and each portion
and provision of this Contract shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Modification
No waiver, alteration or modification of any of the provisions of this contract shall be binding upon

any party unless in writing and signed by the authorized representative of the party against whom such
waiver, alteration or modification is sought to be enforced. Each such amendment, waiver or discharge
will be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given.

Entire Contract
This Contract shall constitute the entire contract between the Parties and supersede any prior

understandings between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

Forrest M. Bird Charter Schools Student Transportation Contract 2021-2026
Page 6 of 7



24, Notice

25.

All notices, requests, demands, waivers, consents and other communications (“Notices”) under this
Contract (A) shall be in writing; shall be delivered (1) via hand delivery, (2) by other electronic
means, (3) by overnight air courier or (4) by Certified Mail, with return receipt requested; and (B)
shall be directed to the party being notified at the following addresses (or at such other addresses as
the Parties imay designate in writing):

For Contractor: For FMBCS:

Harlow’s School Bus Service, Inc. Forrest M. Bird Charter School
1021 South 23™ Street, Suite A 614 S. Madison Avenue
Bismarck, ND 58504 Sandpoint, ID 83864

Attn: Sr. Vice President Attn: Superintendent Designee

Notices are deemed received upon receipt given methods listed above.

Headings
The headings used in this Contract are for the convenience of the parties and for illustration only and

are not to be used for determining or interpreting any of the rights or obligations herein.

ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT

The signatures below indicate acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Contract as described
above. Upon signature, this Contract shall be binding on the Parties. This Contract may be executed
in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, which together, shall constitute one and the
same Contract. A signed copy of this Contract delivered by e-mail or other means of electronic
transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of

this Contract.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:
HARLOW’S SCHOOL,BUS SE 7\" ICE, INC. FORREST M. BIRD CHARTER SCHOOL
Signature; Signature:c%f 1 [ﬁ_%ﬁ{\)
Name: 4;»\ i K sy Name: Kote M©Alister
Title: 1\ b ccded a[ = sfs cu§ Title: _Cha e miun

Date: /- /3 -~ 2\ Date: @’/’3 {&)

Cierﬁ Zf fae @/oard

4//4 /0 )

Dafe’

Forrest M. Bird Charter Schools Student Transportation Contract 2021-2026
Page 7 of 7



-‘IZJJ \’v -
=

33-1510. CONTRACTS FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICE.

(1) All contracts entered into by boards of trustees for the transportation of pupiis shall be in writing
using the current pupil transportation model contract developed by the state department of education.
School districts may attach to the model contract addenda to meet local requirements. School districts
shall submit to the state superintendent of public instruction a copy of the pupil transportation contract
prior to both parties signing it, for a review of legal requirements and appropriate costs and for final
approval. The state superintendent of public instruction shall respond to the school district within
twenty-one (21) calendar days of the postmarked receipt of the contract by notifying the school district
of contract approval or of recommended or required changes. A school district may appeal to the state
board of education any changes the state superintendent requires, in which case the state board may,
upon review, approve the contract without such changes.

{2) No contract shall be executed covering a period of time exceeding five (5) years. School districts shall
advertise, bid and contract for all bus transportation service routes at a single time, and contract with
the lowest responsible bidder or bidders meeting the specifications; provided that, one (1) time only, a
school district may renew a contract with the current contractor if the board of trustees, after
renegotiation with the con- 7 tractor, determines that the terms are satisfactory to the district. The
board of trustees may renew the contract for a term not to exceed five {5) years. Renewal of any
contract pursuant to this section shall not be granted unless the provisions of this section were included,
in a substantially conforming summary, within the bidding notice, published pursuant to section 33-601,
Idaho Code, of the contract.

(3) Before entering into such contracts, the board of trustees shall invite bids by twice giving notice as
provided in section 33-402(2), Idaho Code, and shall award the contract to the lowest responsible

bidder.

[33-1510, added 1963, ch. 13, sec. 88, p. 27; am. 1987, ch. 9, sec. 1, p. 14; am. 1989, ch. 3, sec. 1, p. 4;
am. 1997, ch. 40, sec. 2, p. 76; am. 1997, ch. 176, sec. 1, p. 495; am. 2004, ch. 136, sec. 1, p. 462; am.
2004, ch. 254, sec. 1, p. 725; am. 2009, ch. 171, sec. 6, p. 549; am. 2009, ch. 341, sec. 49, p. 1025; am.

2011, ch. 151, sec. 18, p. 428.]

{ L . . « ig .
No Qoq\,‘\/zp&lmfj Q‘Q.CL',{\&:L‘Q— Mo e, \ .
I\s‘rb\\J&v\\(u&E N VEN Q,Cuvx\?\-u&‘/mq_, :

. s ,/:_/ 3 ( N "»Q/\’ 2 ,~.? L:!—
%lc{. Q‘Z C’u)cfiafjrl 31\!5 g Nt i:LO‘\" tgo\(ew 'MX\[/K{LLL(B v / C'CN{*Q— s
- 2 hacl hand 9\&(

Pie Coxdad phve o How iL\C/L&%&L\;
. ] 0 et s Acdibitn- A
Q)Oa»rz& C‘\,C,@Q,ﬁj‘fl.i— (’/‘F P P \

~.
.“

S Al 3T o s sk bl s e e a\lz g



